UNITED
NATIONS E

. . Distr.
Economic and Social GENERAL
Council

E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 42
2 Decenber 1997

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COWM TTEE ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS
Sevent eent h session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 42nd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Thursday, 27 Novenber 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai rperson: M. GRISSA

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (conti nued)

Second periodic report of Uruguay

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the neetings of the Conmttee at this
session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued shortly
after the end of the session

GE. 97-19536 (E)



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 42
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.10 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS (agenda item 6)

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (conti nued)

Second periodic report of Uruguay (E/1990/6/Add.10; E/ C 12/1994/3;
E/ C. 12/ Q URU/ 1; HR/ CESCR/ NONE/ 97/ 10)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, M. Berthet, M. Rivero,
M. Badi Nadruz, M. Strozzi and M. Lista (Uruguay) took places at the
Committee table.

2. M. BERTHET (Uruguay) said that his Governnent fully shared the goals
fostered by devel opnent and al so the ideals set out in all international human
rights instrunents and nade every effort to conply with the suggestions and
recommendati ons of the relevant treaty bodies. The nmenbers of the del egation
were directly responsible for many of the areas of concern under the Covenant
and their presence attested to the inportance the Governnment attached to the

i npl enment ati on of econonmic, social and cultural rights in Uuguay. He w shed,
however, to point out that the presentation of the report constituted a burden
for devel opi ng countries, nost of which were at a considerable remove from
Geneva. In that regard, he recalled the conclusions and recomendati ons of
the Vienna Declaration and Plan of Action, which recommended that neasures
shoul d continue to be adopted to coordinate the various requirements of

i nternational human rights instruments and that the presentation of a single
conprehensi ve report should be considered. Uruguay had benefited fromthe
consideration of its initial report (E/ 1990/5/Add.7) and, as noted by various
i nternati onal organizations, had made consi derable progress in fulfilling its
obl i gati ons under the Covenant. The del egation | ooked forward to hearing the
Committee's suggestions and renarks.

3. M. BADI NADRUZ (Uruguay) said that Uruguay had paid scrupul ous
attention to the Conmittee's observations and recommendations. |In section B
of the concluding observations (E/ C 12/1994/3), the Committee had noted that
certain rights guaranteed under the Covenant had been incorporated in
Uruguayan |l egislation and in particular the Constitution. It was inportant to
note that the instrunment in question was the 1967 Constitution, which had
recently been reforned. Section B also praised Uruguay for the progress nade
in providing free education. |In fact, the Vareliana Reform of 1887 had
established that education should be free, conpul sory and secular. Those
principles had been extended to university education in 1950 and the
Government was currently considering the possibility of school enrol nment at
the age of four to five.

4, Par agraphs 5 and 11 of the concl uding observations had referred to
economic difficulties caused by the high rate of inflation. Wen the docunent
had been drafted, in 1994, the rate of inflation had stood at 40 per cent, but
it had since dropped to 16 per cent. The Government's goal was to achieve a
single-digit annual rate of inflation



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 42
page 3

5. Par agraph 8 had requested information on the distribution of free schoo
meals. By long tradition, the Uuguayan system had provi ded a school |unch
programme. An NGO, working in cooperation with school authorities and the
school nouri shnent programe, was now providing tray-lunches, simlar to
those offered on airlines, to 120,000 students, out of a school population

of 375,000. If the Comrittee wished, the del egation could provide detailed

i nformati on.

6. Par agraph 12 had expressed concern about education for mnority groups
in Uuguay. The Governnent had assessed the educational system for children
and could confirmthat no mnority groups were barred from access to
education. The latest data circulated to nmenbers described the current
educational reform which was based on the principle of “equality with
quality”. Any further clarifications would, of course, be provided. The
Government had | ooked into the matter of teacher salaries and conflictua

rel ati ons between teachers and the State, raised in paragraph 13.

Consi derabl e progress had been nmade, details of which would be given

in due course. For education programres to be successful, teaching staff
must have a sense of personal dignity and professional satisfaction
Recogni zi ng that the achi evenent of educational goals depended on respect for
human rights, especially the rights of the child, Uruguay counted education
anong its highest priorities.

7. M. STROZZI (Uruguay) said his Government had closely studied the
recommendati on that health-care services should be expanded in rural areas,
and rel evant agreenents had been drawn up between the Mnistry of Public

Heal th and private nmedical institutions. 1In regard to nother and child care,
he had circulated to the nenbers a report containing informati on on the inpact
of recent nedical programres on the infant nortality rate, which had dropped
from17.5 per cent in 1996 to 16.2 per cent in 1997 and was continuing to
decl i ne.

8. He had al so circulated information on Uruguay's Al DS/ H V progranmre,
whi ch showed that in the first half of 1997 the incidence of death from Al DS
was 50 per cent lower than it had been during the sane period in 1996 and that

the spread of the illness had sl owed down.
9. Uruguay was in the process of changing its nmental health programre from
a hospital -based to a community-based treatnment nmodel. In 1990, with the

cooperation of the Faculty of Medicine, a pilot project had |aunched a network
of comrunity clinics to provide direct treatnent to nental health patients,
with excellent results. That treatnment nodel now formed the basis for
ment al - heal th pl anni ng and was bei ng vi gorously devel oped.

10. M. LISTA (Uruguay) said that the report discussed recent econonic
devel opnents, the restoration of denocracy, civil rights and trade union
freedons, and the general inprovenent in the quality of life for the people of

Uruguay. It also described neasures to reduce unenpl oynment |evels, anong them
the creation of the National Enploynent Directorate and the Nationa
Enmpl oyment Council, which were responsible for designing and inplenenting

enpl oynment and manpower retraining policy and for admnistering a fund for
t hat purpose.



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 42
page 4

11. Wthin that framework, various projects had been undertaken, nost of

whi ch postdated the second periodic report: the creation of a |abour narket
noni toring system the reformof the manpower retraining progranmme for workers
wi t h unenpl oynent i nsurance, which included broadeni ng the nunmber of
beneficiaries and i nproving procedures; inplenmentation of the training and

j ob- pl acenent programme for young people; the draft |aw on job creation for
the young, recently adopted by the Uruguayan Parlianment; the training
programme for rural workers; the programme for the pronotion of small- and
medi um si ze enterprises; renedial job training; and various programes
designed to provide opportunities for wonen and ot her groups.

General franework within which the Covenant is inplenented

12. M. RIEDEL, responding to Uruguay's witten replies (HR CESCR/ NONE/ 97)
to the list of issues, said that in paragraph 1 the Commttee was primarily
interested in exanples of case law in which provisions of the Covenant had
been invoked in the Uruguayan courts. |In paragraph 3, the Conmttee sinply
wi shed to know the Governnment's views on the establishment of an optiona
protocol, and, in particular, which of the various existing proposals it
preferred.

13. M. SADI, supporting M. Riedel, said that exanples of case |aw would
allow the Committee to determine the status of the inplementation of the
Covenant in the Uruguayan | egal system In its reply to paragraph 3, the
Governnment had sinply stated that the optional protocol should be
realistically fornulated. He wondered if that suggested that the Covenant
itself was unrealistic. The Conmittee worked on the understandi ng that
countries would fulfill their obligations in accordance with their abilities,
in other words, that in good faith they would begin the process of achieving
the fulfilnment of those obligations.

14. M. TEXIER said that he was puzzled by the reference in paragraph 9 of
Uruguay's witten replies to the need to proceed cautiously with regard to the
optional protocol, since the delegation had also provided the Cormittee with a
conpil ation of case |aw of a l|labour relations court of Mntevideo and of the
Suprene Court, thereby confirm ng that many of the rights set out in the
Covenant already had the force of law. As for the Protocol of San José,
mentioned in that sanme paragraph, he asked whether the ratification process
had been conpl eted or whether a parlianentary act was needed before it could
be appli ed.

15. Paragraph 8 of the replies indicated that there had been an exchange
with an NGO Service, Peace and Justice in Latin Anerica. Wuld the dial ogue
continue in the future and would the Comrittee's conclusions serve as a usefu
i nstrument in that regard?

16. M . ADEKUOYE conmended t he del egation for its specific references to
some of the observations and reconmendati ons made earlier by the Conmttee.

He would like to know how NGOs participated in drafting the report, because he
coul d see no evidence of any such input.




E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 42
page 5

17. Ms. JI MENEZ BUTRAGUENO asked whet her the Governnent intended to
publicize the Cormittee's report and concl udi ng observations. She would have
liked to see a stronger presence of NGOs.

18. M. CEVILLE asked what was neant in paragraph 9 of the replies by the
statement that the protocol should be realistically formul ated and shoul d
recogni ze the problens faced by the majority of |ess devel oped countries in
the inplenentati on of economic, social and cultural rights. Ws that said in
support of the optional protocol, or was it criticisnP

19. M . BERTHET (Uruguay), thanking nenbers for their kind words, said that
the del egation would do its best to provide them specific exanples and, if
necessary, would submt additional material at a |later date.

20. On the question of publicizing and disseninating human rights issues, he
said that a nere reading of Uruguay's press denonstrated the great inportance
attached to the subject. The Parlianent had al ways taken a favourable stance
on the defence of human rights too, and there was broad consensus on the
matter throughout the country.

21. Wth reference to Ms. Jinenez Butraguefo's question NGO had, in fact,
been consulted during the drafting of the report. NGO involvenment in the

i ssues of the day was increasing in Uruguay. For exanple, as indicated in the
report by M. Badi Nadruz on education, one NGO was working hand in hand with
the Governnent on a school food programme. The question about the optiona
protocol would be answered | ater

22. In the matter of inflation, he would rem nd the nenbers that, instead of
relying on shock therapy, Uruguay had fought that scourge by adopting a
gradual i st approach so as to dimnish the suffering anong the population. Its

policy, launched in 1985, had enabled the country to rein in the inflation
rate to 16 per cent in 1997. The goal for 1998 was under 10 per cent and, by
the year 2000, a rate on a par with that of countries with the | owest
inflation in the world.

23. Needl ess to say, the Conmittee's conclusions would be taken into
account. Uruguay had a long tradition of conmplying with its obligations under
i nternational instrunments and he pointed out that international |aw was
directly applicable by the judiciary in his country. Hence, there was no need
for a procedure to incorporate the Covenant in donestic |aw.

Article 2. Non-discrimnation

24. M. SADI, noting that Uruguay's replies in respect of non-discrimnation
confined thenselves to Bl acks and Wites, asked about Uruguay's other ethnic
gr oups.

25. M . BERTHET (Uruguay) said that there was not and never had been any

di scrimnation in Uruguay, which was fortunate enough to have experienced

di scrimnatory legislation the way certain other countries had, including, as
everyone knew, sonme very inportant ones. Uruguay was privileged in that it
had no discrimnation against mnorities or racial problens. |If the report
referred to the black race, it was because there were virtually no other



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 42
page 6

mnority races. There was an ethnic mnority group of the black race, whose
menbers enjoyed the sane rights and were in the sanme situation as al

i nhabitants. Sonetinmes, owing to social circunstances, the progress of that
comunity was not as fast as that of other sectors of the population, but that
did not involve any discrimnnation whatsoever. No reference had been nmade to
ot her races for the sinple reason that there were virtually none in Uruguay.

26. M. AHMED said that he would like to have the delegation's reaction to
the 1997 United States Departnent of State report, according to which
di scrimnation against the black mnority posed problens.

27. M. PILLAY noted that, according to the sane report, three quarters of
the persons interviewed in Uruguay had adm tted that racial prejudice existed,
and two thirds of them had naned Bl acks as the groups that faced npst
discrimnation. He did not see the purpose of the del egation's com ng before
the Committee and contending that discrimnation did not exist in Uruguay at
all. M. Sadi's point was well-taken: there nust be other racial groups. |If
the majority population was white, and 6 per cent of the popul ation was of

bl ack origin, what about mi xed races? Surely, if the Blacks faced

di scrimnation, persons of mxed race did too.

28. M. SADI said that the Conmittee must be careful about reports by
Governnments on other Governnents, which did not necessarily contain the gospe
truth. In his view, the Commttee should not attach so rmuch inportance to
such reports.

29. M. TEXIER said that, personally, he had always refrained from using
information fromthe United States Departnment of State because, although the
United States was the nost powerful country and wanted to rule the

United Nations, he did not see what gave it the right to produce reports on
the human rights situation in the rest of the world and, as it had not
ratified the Covenant, it was not exactly in a position to give anyone |essons
on econom ¢, social and cultural rights. The reports of the United States
Department of State were, by definition biased.

30. M. AHMED said that he was not |evelling any accusations agai nst
Uruguay. On the contrary, he wanted to give the del egati on an opportunity to
respond to comrents so as to throw light on the situation

31. M . BERTHET (Uruguay) said he was not sure that he should address the
subj ect, since there did not seemto be a consensus anong nenbers on whet her
it should be considered.

32. The CHAI RPERSON said that, if a menber of the Commttee asked a
guestion, he or she was entitled to an answer, even if other nenbers di sagreed
with the question.

33. M. BERTHET (Uruguay) said that that was precisely what he was preparing
to do, despite the absence of a consensus. Uruguay had nothing to hide. Al
he wanted to say was that the report in question had been rejected by the
Government of Uruguay. The report's conclusions, which were totally
unaccept abl e, had been the subject of a very detailed reply to the

United States by his Governnent.



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 42
page 7

34. M . ADEKUOYE said that, according to Uruguay's replies, there were no
soci al and econonic indicators with a breakdown by race, and the Bl acks
themsel ves had specifically asked for statistics to reflect the fact of race.
There nust be a reason for that. Many parts of the replies suggested that
certain groups of people were not receiving adequate attention. Perhaps the
absence of statistics on race was due to a |lack of official awareness of the
problem He, too, would |ike the delegation to conment on the assertion to
which M. Pillay had referred.

35. M. WMR said that, as a foreigner who had lived in Uruguay for sone
time, he was willing to believe the delegation when it clained there was no
di scrimnation. Uruguay was a country of immgrants and, in his experience,
he had never seen any evidence of racial discrimnation

36. The people of African origin formed a small group, representing

5 per cent of the population at nbst. Admittedly, the black popul ation were
anong the poorest of social groups and lived in ghettos, and there was no rea
m xi ng of persons of African and of European origin. It was disturbing that
the bl ack popul ation continued to be nmarginalized in social and economc
terms. The real issue was whether Uruguayan society, which, apart fromthe
years of dictatorship, had been a nodel of denmpbcracy in Latin America and had
produced brilliant jurists, poets and other intellectuals, had not attended to
the needs of its mnority population. Had the Governnment adopted neasures or
formul at ed programes and objectives to inprove the soci o-econom ¢ situation
of the bl ack popul ati on?

37. M. TEXIER said that the Constitution and | aws of Uruguay contai ned
anpl e provisions to conbat racial discrimnation and the State itself did not
pronote di scrimnatory policies. However, as was often the case, despite

| egi sl ation, public sentinent reflected a nunber of racial prejudices. He

t heref ore wondered whet her the Governnment intended to | aunch an educationa
canpaign to fight those prejudices or to establish a balance which would
ensure greater representation of all groups in positions of influence.

38. M. KOUSNETSOV drew the attention of the delegation to the fact that the
menbers of the Conmittee were in possession of a country analysis of Uruguay
whi ch contained a recommendati on, nmade in 1993 by the United Nations Human

Ri ghts Committee, that special neasures should be taken to protect mnorities,
as provided under article 27 of the International Covenant on Civil and
Political Rights. He would like to know what measures had been adopted in
response to that recommendation

39. Ms. BONOAN- DANDAN suggested that the del egation was well intentioned in
stating that there was no racial discrimnmnation against wonen. It was easy to
forget that discrimnation against wonmen went beyond questions of equality.
More often, wonmen suffered discrimnation in their capacity as wonen and not
necessarily in conparison with nmen.

40. She comended the del egation on the inpressive ambunt of detail and
hi stori cal background from paragraph 22 onwards of the witten replies to
issues relating to article 3 of the Covenant and noted the |egislative
achi evenents and ot her exanples of progress in the elimnation of

di scrim nation agai nst wonmen. Paragraph 42 said it had been difficult to



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 42
page 8

nmeasure the inpact of the nechanisns established to elimnate the remaining
causes of such discrimnation. She would Iike nore information on precisely
what difficulties had been encountered and what obstacles remained in
connection with traditional practices.

41. M. CEAUSU said that, in considering the issue of racial discrimnation
the Committee was working on the basis of data received in the information
provi ded by the Governnent in its reports and replies to the |ist of issues,
and fromreports received froma variety of sources. |In his opinion, a nunber
of the Government's replies confirnmed the notion that a problemdid exist in
connection with the treatnent of the black mnority.

42. More specifically paragraphs 19 and 20 showed that, although the bl ack
popul ati on sought inclusion as an ethnic group in official reports, the
National Statistics Institute considered that the ampunt of data avail abl e at
present was too snmall to permt calculation of valid indicators for that
popul ati on group. The obligations of States parties under the Covenant were
the responsibility of Governments and the Committee should not be given any
excuses for the lack of statistical data on the situation of a nationa
mnority.

43. As a matter of principle, the Governnent should take up the issues
relating to its black mnority and all guarantees and provisions under

i nternational instrunments should be respected, enabling people to be
recogni zed as national mnorities. It should not hesitate to adopt the
requi site measures to ensure that the situation was adequately reflected in
official statistical data.

44, Ms. JI MENEZ BUTRAGUENO expressed surprise and concern at the absence of
a section dealing with article 3 in the periodic report. Although the replies
were on the whol e satisfactory, sone areas of doubt still renmined.

45. She would Iike a further explanation of the information in paragraph 35
of the witten replies, which stated that, under Decree No. 37 agai nst sexua
discrimnation, restricting enploynent to one sex, where essential to the
activities or responsibilities of a given job or required by certain

i nternational |abour agreenents, was not discrimnatory. Wich activities
were wonren excluded fromin Uruguay? She also asked for a response to
paragraph 9, on the adoption of neasures to increase the nunber of wonen in
posts of responsibility in both the private and public sectors.

46. The CHAI RPERSON poi nted out that there were no data on the proportion of
t he bl ack popul ation in schools and institutions of higher learning. As |ong
as the Committee did not receive information directly fromthe Governnment, it

had to rely on other sources.

47. M . BERTHET (Uruguay) said that his Governnent regarded racial and
sexual discrimnation as extremely inportant issues.

48. There were highly-placed professional wonen active in all spheres of
Uruguayan life. The 1946 Civil Rights of Whnen Act had recognized full civi
equality at a tinme when many countries, including countries in Europe, had not
consi dered acknow edgi ng such rights. Admttedly, wonen obviously had nore



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 42
page 9

probl ems than nmen in such situations because they played a dual role as
prof essi onal s and nothers, but those difficulties should not be construed as
evi dence of discrimnation

49. As for the reference to persons of mxed race, Uruguayan mul attos were
entirely assimlated into society and hence they were not a separate ethnic
group. No problemarose in that regard. As far as the black popul ati on was
concerned, he would refer to paragraphs 14 et seq. of the witten replies and
poi nt out that the Governnent had been in close collaboration with the NGO
Mundo Afro, to |look into the question of introducing a nodule on race into the
regul ar statistical household surveys. A nenorandum of understandi ng had been
concl uded between the Governnent and the NGO in that regard. The bl ack

popul ati on experienced difficulty in joining Uuguayan society and in
participating in the country's econom ¢ and social progress. The Government
recogni zed the inportance of collaborating with the NGO in facilitating the
integration of the black population. It was now in the process of preparing
its report to the Cormittee on the Elimnation of Racial Discrimnation and a
copy woul d be made avail able in due course

50. M. BADI NADRUZ (Uruguay) stressed that the reason for not including a
separate group of statistics on black Uruguayans was that the Governnent had
never w shed to single out any popul ation group in ternms of skin col our
origin or other characteristics. Under article 8 of the Constitution, al
persons were equal before the law and the sole distinction to be made was on
the basis of skills and capabilities. Enphasizing that all citizens in
Uruguay enjoyed the sanme rights, he took great pride in the fact that the
present popul ati on of Uruguayans came from di verse backgrounds and engaged in
their occupations without the slightest discrimnation whatsoever. Education
was essential for sustained personal growth in the future and so Uruguay had
pl aced nmuch enphasis on granting all citizens equal access to all |evels of
schooling and on ensuring that no limtations were placed on people of a

di fferent col our or foreigners.

51. M. LISTA (Uruguay) pointed out that the Uruguayan M nister of Labour
was a woman. The Civil Rights of Wwnen Act in 1945 had incorporated the
rights of married wonen, whereas the rights of wonen in general had been
established nmuch earlier, under the Civil Code.

52. Par agraph 31 of the witten replies spoke of “Act No. 10,045" - a
typographi cal error for “Act No. 16,045”, an Act that provided redress for
persons who were victinms of sexual discrimnation, who could refer to the
Labour Police, a departnent under the Ceneral |nspectorate of Labour and
Soci al Security which dealt exclusively with violations of enploynent

regul ations. He would point out in connection to Ms. Jinmenez Butraguefo's
question that there m ght be tasks requiring extraordi nary physical effort
whi ch woul d be unsuitable for wonen, but in principle wonen had access to al
j obs.

53. M. BERTHET (Uruguay) said that article 3 had not been included in the
periodi c report under discussion because nothing had changed in respect of
Uruguay's inplenentation of that article of the Covenant since the previous
report.



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 42
page 10

54. M. CEVILLE asked what the percentage of wonen was in the |abour force
and what their average wages were in conparison with nen.

55. M s. BONOAN- DANDAN sai d that her reason for asking about discrimnnation
agai nst wonen was that the witten replies thensel ves had alluded to the fact
that discrimnation did in fact exist. Paragraph 29 specifically stated that
areas of discrimnation remained with respect to wonen, particularly
under-representation in top political posts and in job discrimnation

56. She could not fail to reiterate her earlier comrent that discrimnation
was not limted to questions of equality. She was unwilling to believe that
wonen did not suffer discrinmination in Uuguay, as the problem affected even

t he nost nodern societies. The fact that women did not conplain publicly did
not in any way nean they were not suffering fromdiscrimnation. The very
affirmation that women had a harder task in their roles as professionals and
homemakers was in itself discrimnatory and it was not enough to list the

hi gh-1 evel jobs held by sone wonen. She would |ike the nore specific problens
faci ng wonen, beyond their role as housekeepers, to be explored so as to

exam ne their broader role in society and to see whether traditional practices
di scrim nated agai nst them

57. M . ADEKUOYE, referring to paragraphs 18 and 19 of the witten replies,
pointed to the acknow edgenent that there was in fact a subtle relationship
between race and social status. Even if legislation did require privileges to
be based on merit, it was sonetinmes difficult for certain classes of people to
achieve nerit because of a bias in the social system He therefore asked the
del egation to explain the nmeani ng of paragraph 18 (c) of the replies.

58. Furthernore, was the delegation aware that a survey had been conducted
in February 1995 on attitudes towards race and that the persons surveyed had
admtted the existence of racial discrimnation, stating by a two-thirds
majority that the black popul ation was the social group nost affected?

59. M. LISTA (Uruguay) said enploynment statistics for the period between
May and July 1997 showed that the rate of unenploynment was 10.4 per cent for
men, as opposed to 14.3 per cent for wonen. He wished to stress that, under

| abour | egislation, the highest protection was afforded agai nst di sm ssal of
pregnant wonen. Wth regard to M. Ceville's question on the participation of
wonen in the | abour market, 56.4 per cent of the econonmically active

popul ati on were nmen and 43.6 per cent were wonen.

60. M. AHMED said that figures on the inconmes of nen and women i n Uruguay
were provided by the publication “Social Watch: Uruguay Poverty Decreases but
Insatisfaction Grows”, which noted that, in 1994, wonen's incomes had on
average been 60 per cent less than nen's. Such inequality was nore marked in
the private sector, especially for wonen in the professions, although anong

of fice workers, wonen's earnings were sonmewhat better than the average, at

68 per cent of nen's.

Article 6. The right to work

61. M. ANTANOVI CH said that, although the information fromthe various
sources available to the Commttee m ght not always be consistent, there was




E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 42
page 11

no reasons to suppose that the Commttee would not reach consensus on which
data were clear and well substantiated. It would therefore be preferable for
the del egation to provide actual figures than to dwell on discrepancies.

62. He asked what neasures, |egal or otherwi se, were being taken to combat
child labour, a problemto which Uruguay, |ike many countries, did not appear
to be imune. Had any |egal steps been taken, in conformty with the ILO

M ni mum Age Convention (No. 138), to raise the mninmmage for entry into
enpl oynent ?  Anot her means of delaying the entry of children into enpl oynent
was to provide vocational education, which, because the acquisition of skills
and know edge took time, also gave the child a chance to mature.

Sel f - enpl oynent, which appeared to be on the increase in Uruguay, often
implied small businesses and fam |y enterprises, which could be hidden users
of child I abour.

63. M. ADEKUOYE said the fact that many young people were emgrating from
Uruguay, which also had a low birth rate, was an indication of an ageing
popul ation. Proof of that also lay in the fact that reform of the pensions
system had been consi dered necessary. Wre there any neans whereby ol der
peopl e who m ght want to do so could continue in enploynment beyond the age of
retirement, in order to increase the pool of available [abour? Ws there any
di scrim nation agai nst ol der people in enpl oynent?

64. M. SADI noted that in Uruguay a worker dism ssed for m sconduct was
entitled to one nonth's wage for every year of work up to a maxi mum of six
nont hs' wages. Did those provisions still apply in the case of arbitrary

dismi ssal or in the case of workers nmade redundant when a business or factory
cl osed down?

65. Wth regard to the disabl ed, paragraph 80 of the witten replies to the
list of issues stated that 7 per cent of the population suffered from sone
formof disability and 70 per cent of them- in other words, 4 per cent of the
popul ation - were nentally disabled. He wondered whether there were any
health or nutritional factors that m ght explain those figures, which seened
rat her high.

66. M . ADEKUOYE asked whet her any other groups of the population in
addition to wonen were particularly affected by unenpl oynent. Unenpl oynment
al so appeared to be nore sharply felt in the building sector than in other
i ndustries. WAs there any reason why that should be so?

67. M. LISTA (Uruguay) said that, follow ng Uruguay's ratification of ILO
Convention No. 138, the m ninum age for enploynment had been raised to 15. As
an exception, children between 12 and 15 were pernitted to work in famly
enterprises or with famly nmenbers, or on light work such as delivering
newspapers, but in both cases for no nore than two hours a day.

68. Measures were being taken to conbat the increase in child [ abour. Under
an agreenent with UNI CEF, a study woul d be conducted of the present situation
and the policies and strategies currently in force with a viewto preparing a
programe of specific activities to conbat the practice.



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 42
page 12

69. M. BADI NADRUZ (Uruguay), referring to M. Antanovich's view that
education was a neans of preventing child | abour, said that the goal of the
educational reformprocess initiated in 1996 was to ensure universal access to
el ementary education - namely kindergarten, primary and early secondary
education - which covered the ages at which child | abour was a matter of
concern. Another inportant aimwas to provide schools that woul d take care of
children throughout the day, so that nothers would have the opportunity to
seek paid enmploynent. Since the start of the reform 20,000 children had been
enrolled in el enentary education. By March 1998, an additional 300 schools
built would ensure virtually conplete coverage of the 4 to 5 year-old age
group. A further 141 schools and 300 full-tinme schools would be conmpl eted by
the end of 1998. As for vocational education, in conjunction with the
National Institute for Mnors schools would give children some instruction in
the workings of small enterprises, which would be further devel oped in
secondary school. Special efforts were being made to extend coverage of rura
ar eas.

70. M. LISTA (Uruguay) said that conpensation for disnm ssal was set at
certain mninmm]level s and depended on whet her the worker concerned had been
enpl oyed by the nonth or the day. |In the first case the conpensation was one
mont h's wage, and in the second 25 days' pay for every year of work. The nost
common form of arbitrary disnmissal was that intended to harmthe worker, such
as dism ssal of a trade union activist or dismssal of a worker after a
l[ifetime spent in an enterprise. Another formwas indirect dismssal, when it
was the worker who had | eft enploynent because working conditions or pay
represented a violation of workers' rights.

71. As to the enploynment of disabled persons, since 1989 the |ega

obligation was that 4 per cent of vacant jobs nust be reserved for them The
Nat i onal Enpl oynent Directorate had, together with a non-governnenta

organi zation, set up a pilot programme covering about 500 people for the
retraining of disabled workers. A national conm ssion on the disabled was

al so engaged in many projects for their rehabilitation and retraining. Young
people were the main group, in addition to wonmen, affected by unenpl oyment and
t he National Enploynent Council and the National Enploynment Directorate were
engaged in a successful training and retraining project for the young.

72. M. STROZZI (Uruguay) said that the figures for the proportion of
physically and nentally disabled in the population given in paragraph 80 of
the witten replies were conparable to those found in other countries

t hroughout the worl d.

73. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO, referring to M. Adekuoye's earlier question,
asked whet her any problens were experienced in the enpl oynent of ol der
persons. Wre there any projects to deal with persons approaching retirenent
age?

74. M. LISTA (Uruguay) said that the National Enploynment Directorate had a
rehabilitation progranme for ol der workers seeking enpl oynent, a progranme
under which each case was dealt with individually in order to place the person
in suitable work or to ensure retraining where necessary.



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 42
page 13

75. M. BADI NADRUZ (Uruguay) said that, in all areas of education up to

uni versity |l evel, teachers could continue to work after retirement age if they
so wi shed, subject to a nedical exam nation. It afforded an opportunity to
earn a supplenmentary income if teachers were in receipt of a pension. In

ot her cases, teachers did not receive their pension but were enployed at the
sanme sal ary |evel as before reaching retirenent age. There was al so an
educational systemfor ol der persons, terned the university of the third age,
where they could acquire new know edge and new skills.

76. M. LISTA said that although, under the recent reformof the systemthe
ordinary retirement age was 60, people were not necessarily conpelled to stop
wor ki ng at that age. There were options to retire later and so acquire a
greater retirenment benefit. People above retirement age who had ceased work
were not legally entitled to return to their previous enpl oynent because of
the need to nake jobs available for young people. Hi gher rates of

unenpl oyment than el sewhere prevailed in the construction industry fromtinme
totime as it was prone to fluctuations in the econom c cycle.

The neeting rose at 1 p.m




